

<u>The Federation of Wellington Community Primary School</u> and Marlborough Infant School

<u>Assessment and Reporting Policy</u> (Including Marking and Feedback)

Written: October 2023 Next Review Planned: October 2025

Signed: <u>R Davies</u> (Policy Owner)

Print Name: Russell Davies

Review Date: 2nd October 2024

Signed:_____ (Governor Approval)

Print Name:_____

Approval Date:_____



The Federation of Wellington Community Primary School and Marlborough Infant School

Marking and Feedback Policy

POLICY CHANGE HISTORY

Version	Date	Status	Policy Owner	Governor Approval	Comment
1.0	10.10.2023	Approved	AW	JM	Changes inline with the current provision and marking codes
2.0	02.10.24	Incorporated Marking and Feedback	Russell Davies		Combined two policies to avoid repetition and ensure clarity

Contents

- 1. Rationale
- 2. Roles and responsibilities
- 3. Objectives for marking and feedback
- 4. Key principles to marking and feedback.
- 5. Marking and Feedback
 - a. Verbal feedback
 - b. Written feedback
- 6. Types of marking & assessment
 - a. Formative assessment
 - b. Summative assessment
- 7. Tracking pupil progress
- 8. National statutory assessments
- 9. Target setting
- 10. Participation in national statutory assessments
- 11. Equal opportunities
- 12. SEND
- 13. Intervention and additional provision
- 14. Analysis of performance
- 15. Reporting to parents/carers
- 16. Moderation
- 17. Monitoring
- 18. Yearly transfer of class information
- 19. Appendices

1. Rationale

Assessment lies at the heart of the process of promoting children's learning. It provides a framework within which educational objectives may be set and children's progress expressed and monitored. This should be done in partnership with the children as they have a shared ownership of their learning, and full understanding of their next steps in learning and how this is supported and enhanced.

Assessment should be incorporated systematically into teaching strategies in order to diagnose any problems and chart progress. It helps the school to strengthen learning across the curriculum and helps teachers enhance their skills and judgements. Our assessment procedures are free from bias, stereotyping and generalisation in respect of gender, class, race and disability and we fully understand and work for equality of opportunity.

We strongly believe that solid and robust assessment for learning lies at the hub of quality first teaching and learning experiences, in line with our teaching and learning policy. Assessment for learning is happening all of the time to ensure that children's next steps are right for them, appropriately challenging, and well supported and enhanced. This is so that our children can make progress at a faster rate than is expected of them.

Marking children's work is an important part of teacher and self- assessment. At The Federation of Wellington Community Primary School and Marlborough Infant School, our aim is to ensure all children will have their work marked in such a way that it will improve their learning, develop their self- confidence, raise self-esteem and provide opportunities for self-assessment and personal next steps for learning.

Feedback informs all participants in the learning process of the progress made and feeds into the next cycle of planning for teaching and learning. Regular marking ensures teachers know the individual needs and abilities within the class and are confident of providing next steps in learning, which will help to raise standards.

We aim to develop independent learners who have the ability to seek out and gain new skills, knowledge and understandings. We want our children to engage in self-reflection and to be able to identify the next steps in their learning. As a federation, we aim to equip children with the desire and the capacity to take charge of their learning through developing the skills of self-assessment.

The aim of this policy is to give a clear outline of the assessment principles, processes and procedures across the Federation of Wellington Community Primary School and Marlborough Infant School.so that it is consistent across the schools. All members of staff are expected to be familiar with the policy and to apply it consistently.

2. Roles and responsibilities

Class teachers are responsible for assessing, recording and tracking the progress of all pupils in their class. Progress will be also be informed by information provided from other teachers or Specialist Teachers, where a child is taught by someone else for part or all of a subject if appropriate. Alongside the Assessment Leader, Phase Leaders are responsible for keeping an overview of attainment and progress across their phase. They will lead termly pupil progress meetings with teachers.

The Inclusion Leader/SENCo is responsible for checking the progress of SEND pupils termly and supporting class teachers in planning interventions or additional provision where needed.

The Designated Teacher is responsible for checking the progress of looked-after children termly and supporting class teachers in planning interventions or additional provision where needed.

Subject leaders are responsible for monitoring the assessment processes and pupil attainment and progress in their subject. This may be done through monitoring assessment records, work sampling, observations and learning walks.

The Assessment Leader has overall responsibility for assessment and record keeping procedures and practices across the school. This includes responsibility for maintaining Arbor (our chosen online assessment system), monitoring assessments, analysing school and national data and ensuring performance data is published on the school website.

The Head teacher, Deputy Head teacher and Assessment Leader are responsible for reporting to governors on school attainment and progress, including a comparison to national and local authority standards.

3. Objectives for marking and feedback.

- To tell children what they have done well and celebrate their achievements.
- To provide clear next steps, either verbally or in written form, about how to improve.
- To diagnose and challenge misunderstandings and misconceptions.
- To inform future planning.
- To inform parents/carers, SLT, Teachers, Governors and outside agencies who are involved in the school, e.g. Consultants and OFSTED inspectors.

4. Key Principles to marking and feedback.

Using the principles and processes of assessment, we aim to:

- Ensure that we plan accurately for children's learning through effective marking and observation
- Monitor progress and support learning within teaching and learning, and beyond
- Recognise the achievements of pupils
- Guide future planning, teaching and curriculum development
- Inform parents and the wider community of pupil achievement
- Provide information to ensure continuity when the pupil changes school or year group
- Comply with statutory requirements

Marking and feedback should:

- Be manageable for teachers and accessible to children.
- Give recognition and praise for achievement.
- Provide clear advice and strategies for improvement and next learning steps.
- Identify pupils for immediate intervention.
- Involve all adults working with the children in the classroom.
- Allow specific time for children to read, reflect and respond to marking.
- Respond to individual learning needs
- Inform future planning and group target setting.
- Use consistent marking codes across the Federation
- Show children that their learning is valued and purposeful.
- Ultimately, be seen by children as a positive approach to celebrate their achievements and improve their learning.

5. Marking and feedback

When marking and giving pupils feedback, both written and verbal, teachers are assessing pupils' achievements and noting areas for development. This policy, along with feedback codes for all year groups, ensure a consistent approach throughout the school. When marking, teachers use green pen to give constructive feedback and to show what pupils need to do to improve and/or a next step for their learning. Children then respond to this.

a. Verbal Feedback

Verbal feedback is extremely important and should be ongoing throughout lessons. It is important for all children to have verbal feedback from adults. All children need verbal feedback, but this is particularly important in the Early Years and Key Stage 1, where children may be unable to respond to a written comment.

The adult giving feedback should record that verbal feedback has been given with the code 'VF' and, if appropriate, include a short summary of what was discussed.

b. Immediate Intervention

Immediate intervention will take place on the same day that the lesson was taught. Any misconceptions are addressed from the lesson to ensure the child 'keeps up' ready for their next lesson. This adult-led intervention is focused, targeted and short. It links directly to the leaning objective taught.

Non-negotiable procedures and minimum expectations for marking:

- Worksheets are to be trimmed and stuck neatly in the children's books. All pupils' work is to be at least 'light' marked by teachers with a tick and adult's initials (if not the class teacher).
- Learning Support Assistants tick and initial work as well as writing (LSA) next to initial and indicate whether child has been supported (AS) or worked independently (I) etc. (see Appendix 1 for codes).
- All marking by a class teacher is to be carried out using a green pen.
- All marking is to be done in clear legible handwriting aligned to the school handwriting policy.
- The KS1 and KS2 marking codes are to be followed in all cases (see Appendix 1) which should be stuck inside the front cover of all exercise books.
- Children edit work, redraft and make improvements to their work in purple pen.

Basic skills:

- All spelling, punctuation and grammar errors are not marked in every piece of writing but will be noted as a future teaching point. Key SPAG is marked across subjects.
- Incorrect spellings may not always be corrected. The words that are identified are
 more common words, which we would like the child to focus on. A maximum of 3
 spellings for each piece of work will be underlined (unless there is a direct link with
 the learning intention) and the appropriate marking codes will be written in the
 margin. Those three words will be the focus of a next step. Children will then copy
 each word three times. Incorrect spellings must be corrected in all subjects (not just
 in English).
- Not all incorrect or missing punctuation will be corrected. This will be indicated by using the writing marking codes (see Appendix 1).
- Number and letter formation up to a maximum of 3 numbers or letters for each piece of work will be underlined. Those three numbers or letters will be written by the teacher at the bottom of the child's work. Children will then copy each number or letter three times. Incorrect number and letter formation must be corrected in every subject (not just in English and Mathematics).

6. Types of Marking & Assessment

It is the class teacher's responsibility to ensure that each piece of work is marked as this will help to form their assessments ahead of the next lesson. They will use their professional judgement to select which of the following types of marking are to be used.

- Verbal Feedback (individual, group and whole class)
- Green comments
- 'light marking' referring to the appropriate marking codes with the date and class teacher's initials
- Challenge questioning (Typed)
- Peer marking where appropriate

a. Formative assessment

Formative assessment, also known as 'assessment for learning' and 'day to day assessment', is an ongoing, integral part of the teaching process. Teachers determine what pupils know, understand and can do and what they need to do next to progress or 'keep up'. The information gained enables teachers to make adaptations to a lesson as it progresses, addressing misconceptions or increasing the level of challenge, and informs future planning.

A key aim of AfL is to allow children to learn from each other and improve, moving forward in their learning. AfL is any assessment activity which informs the next steps to learning. The key message is that AfL depends crucially on actually using the information gained.

"An assessment activity can help learning if it provides information to be used as feedback by teachers and their pupils in assessing themselves and each other, to modify the teaching and learning activities in which they are engaged. Such assessment becomes formative assessment when the evidence is actually used to adapt the teaching to meet learning needs."

Black et al, 2002

Formative assessment strategies used include:

- Questioning
- Observing
- · Clear learning objectives and success criteria shared with pupils
- Opportunities for pupils to construct the success criteria with the teacher, e.g. after viewing a good example
- Self-assessment
- Peer assessment
- Opportunities for dialogue between pupils and between pupil and teacher
- 'No hands up' approaches
- Use of mini whiteboards and resources such as number fans to give instant feedback to teachers
- Mixed ability learning partners and learning opportunities
- Guided group teaching focused on next steps
- Verbal and written feedback from the teacher focused on successes and next steps against the learning objective and success criteria
- Pupils respond to feedback in pen or pencil where appropriate
- Pupils will edit, redraft and improving their work using a pencil and yellow highlighter
- Pre- and post- assessments
- Diagnostic assessments
- Plenaries and mini-plenaries to review learning, check understanding and address misconceptions

b. Summative assessment

Summative assessment, also known as 'assessment of learning', summarises where a pupil is in their learning at a point in time, for example at the end of a unit, term, year or key stage. It provides a snapshot of what has been learned in terms of both attainment and achievement.

Teachers make summative teacher assessments in reading, writing and mathematics towards the end of each term. In addition, phonics assessments are made half-termly for pupils in Reception, Year 1 and Year 2.

At certain times, there are statutory assessments for all pupils nationally (see point 8).

7. Tracking pupil progress

The progress of all pupils in reading, writing and mathematics is tracked within the three phases using the summative teacher assessments.

Teachers complete an analysis of the tracking data for the three phases. This includes the identification of any pupils who are not progressing as well as they should and any reasons for this. Recommendations are made for intervention or additional provision in the next term.

Pupil progress meetings are held within each assessment stage.

8. National Statutory Assessments

Early Years Foundation Stage Profile

Class Teachers will complete the EYFS profile for pupils and make judgements so that outcomes are accurate and consistent across the early years setting. The EYFS profile is intended to provide a reliable, valid and accurate assessment of each child's development at the end of the EYFS. It is made up of an assessment of the child's outcomes in relation to the 17 early learning goal (ELG) descriptors.

Year 1 Phonics Screening Check

The phonics screening check is designed to confirm whether pupils have learnt phonic decoding to an appropriate standard. It will identify pupils who need extra help to improve their decoding skills.

The check consists of 20 real words and 20 pseudo-words that pupils read aloud to the check administrator, usually the class teacher.

This check is administered in June. Results are reported to the local authority and to parents as part of the annual report.

Any pupil not meeting the threshold of the phonics check is required to retake the screening check in Year 2. Extra support is put in place for these pupils during Year 2.

Year 4 Multiplication Screening

In Year 4, pupils will complete the multiplication tables check (MTC), which became statutory for primary schools in the 2021/22 academic year.

The purpose of the MTC is to determine whether pupils can recall their times tables fluently, which is essential for future success in mathematics. It will help schools to identify pupils who have not yet mastered their times tables, so that additional support can be provided.

Schools must administer the MTC to all eligible year 4 pupils.

Key Stage Two Assessments

At the end of Year 6, pupils are assessed against national criteria in reading, writing, mathematics and science.

The pupils also sit national curriculum tests (often known as SATs) in May which consist of:

- English grammar, punctuation and spelling Paper 1 short answer questions
- English grammar, punctuation and spelling Paper 2 spelling
- English reading Paper 1 reading booklet and associated answer booklet
- Mathematics Paper 1 arithmetic
- Mathematics Paper 2 reasoning
- Mathematics Paper 3 reasoning

These tests are carried out in the classroom on the dates set out nationally and are marked externally. Raw scores are converted to a scaled score where 100 or above is the expected attainment.

Teacher assessments and test results are reported to the local authority and to parents as part of the annual report.

9. Target setting

End-of-year targets are set for all pupils for reading, writing and mathematics based on their prior attainment. Targets are reviewed termly and adjusted where needed. Next steps in learning are identified and shared with pupils through marking and feedback.

10. Participation in National Statutory Assessments

Most pupils will participate in all statutory assessments. Access arrangements are put in place where appropriate, in line with the 'Access arrangements guidance' from the STA, to enable a pupil to do so. On occasion, it may not be suitable for a pupil to take statutory assessments even with access arrangements in place.

Headteachers make the final decision about whether it is appropriate for a pupil to take statutory assessments. Some parents may ask a headteacher not to enter their child for the tests/phonics screening check. Parents may also ask a headteacher to enter their child for the check when the school has decided this is not appropriate. In all instances, the headteacher's decision regarding participation is final.

As part of the decision-making process, the headteacher will:

- discuss the pupil's circumstances and needs with their parents and teachers
- Consult, if appropriate, with the Special Educational Needs Co-ordinator (SENCo), Head
 of the SNSC, educational psychologists, medical officers or other specialist staff to
 consider access arrangements that might be appropriate to enable pupils to demonstrate
 their full abilities.
- The headteacher will report their decision to parents. If appropriate, they will provide the parents with documentary evidence to support their decision.
- Where the decision has been made not to administer the phonics screening check to a pupil, the headteacher will also explain how they are helping the pupil to learn to decode using phonics.

11. Equal Opportunities

Assessment enables teachers to identify the individual needs of all pupils. It enables pupils with special educational needs and disabilities, more able pupils and pupils for whom English is an additional language to have their learning needs met through support and differentiation.

12. <u>SEND</u>

Pupils with SEND Support Arrangements or EHCPs/statements have individual provision maps identifying the additional support they are receiving each term.

Through Personal Learning Plans (PLPs), Pupils on the SEND register have personalised targets (known as 'outcomes') which are set and reviewed termly. These are shared with parents during termly SEND review meetings.

The Inclusion Leader will support class teachers in completing SEND Support Arrangements and in planning provision. Outside agency involvement will be sought where required.

Pupils working significantly below the national curriculum are assessed using levels of engagement.

13. Intervention and additional provision

Progress in learning is not always predictable and steady. Some pupils require additional provision or immediate intervention at times in order to accelerate progress and close the gap between their attainment and that of their peers.

Pupils involved in intervention programmes are assessed at the start and end of the programme to measure progress. Diagnostic assessments provide information about gaps in understanding.

Interventions and additional provision are recorded on class provision maps termly as is immediate intervention.

Teachers and teaching assistants who lead intervention programmes are responsible for monitoring progress of pupils and for communicating this to class teachers.

14. Analysis of performance

The Assessment Leader will analyse progress towards end of year expectations across three phases, using teacher assessment data to review progress of all pupils individually and also groups of pupils, including vulnerable groups.

Performance data is to be analysed in the Autumn term, along with school end of year data for all year groups, and reported in an appropriate way to teachers, SLT and governors.

Key findings from this analysis inform the School Improvement Plan and professional development.

15. Reporting to parents/carers

Parents receive an annual written report in April. All reports contain pupil comments followed by a 'personal profile' which describes an all-round picture of the child.

EYFS reports include written comments about the child based on the characteristics of effective learning. Assessments of the Early Years Foundation Stage Profile are also communicated with parents.

KS1 and KS2 reports include written comments and summative teacher assessments against end of year expectations for reading, writing and mathematics, along with next steps. Effort and attainment in foundation subjects is reported against age related expectations.

All reports end with suggestions for support at home to support progress in the summer term. The report includes a comment slip for parents to respond if they would like to.

The outcomes of all statutory assessments are reported on a separate sheet to parents.

Parent/teacher consultation evenings take place twice a year, in the Autumn and Spring terms. During these meetings teachers share the pupils' attainment against end of year expectations, next step targets and the progress pupils have made to date. Spring term meetings are by invitation for children who are not reaching their potential. In addition, we have an 'open door' policy where staff are always willing to discuss any parental concerns. If a member of staff has concerns over a pupil they will contact the parents/carers.

Parents/carers of children on the SEND register will be invited to annual reviews.

16. Moderation

To ensure teacher assessment judgements are accurate and consistent, moderation takes place both internally and externally.

Internal moderation takes place in year groups/phases during Staff meetings and in Professional Development Meetings.

EYFS teachers will attend EYFS profile moderation workshops.

Year 6 teachers attend HIAS training to ensure that they are fully aware of the requirements for carrying out statutory assessments and making assessment judgements.

The local authority carry out moderation visits to a selection of schools each year for EYFS and Year 6.

17. Monitoring

The progress of all pupils is monitored by the Assessment Leader and Senior Leadership team. Particular emphasis is paid to the progress of specific pupil groups, particularly disadvantaged pupils.

Targets are monitored by the Assessment Leader to ensure that they are appropriately challenging, whilst also achievable.

This policy will be evaluated and reviewed annually.

18. Yearly Transfer of Class Information

Assessment information should be passed on to the receiving teacher. This will include, but is not limited to, teacher assessment data, information on interventions to support learning and any SEND.

19. Appendices

a. Writing Marking Codes

KS1 Marking Code

M	lark	Meaning					
Correction and Feedback							
	Sp		Incorrect	Spelling			
		(re-write 3 times where the arrow is indicated)					
		Needs improving or re-writing.					
*		Respond to feedback/rewrite word or sentence here.					
(er	een &	Teacher will write or pre-make on a sticker a next step for the child.					
Cha	llenge	You have an extra challenge to complete and move your learning on.					
	^	Insert word					
	abc	Capital Letter					
	$\left(\cdot \right)$	Full Stop					
Level of Support							
AS	Adult Supp	orted Activity	Р	Partner Work			
I	Independer	nt Work	VF	Verbal Feedback Given			
G	Group Worl	ĸ	SW	Shared Write			

- When the children need to respond to their marking, leave a post-it note (tab) in their book, they must not remove until you have checked it, they can tick it to show they have responded!
- Some of the above symbols can also be used on pre-made stickers to save time, they are saved on the shared drive.

KS2 Marking Code

Mark	Meaning				
Correction and Feedback					
Sp	Incorrect Spelling				
	Needs improving or re-writing.				
*	Respond to feedback/rewrite word or sentence here.				
Green G.	Teacher will write or pre-make on a sticker a next step for the child.				
Challenge	You have an extra challenge to complete and move your learning on.				
^	Insert word				
P	Punctuation				
	New Paragraph needed				
S&M	Re-read for sense and meaning				
(T)	Tense				
F	Formality				
Level of Support					
AS	Adult-supported activity				
6	Group or partner work				
ŚW	Shared write with an adult				
(I)	Independent work*				
(/F)	Verbal Feedback Given				
*Unless indicated otherwise, work is assumed to have been done without adult support.					

- When the children need to respond to their marking, leave a post-it note (tab) in their book, they must not remove until you have checked it, they can tick it to show they have responded!
- Some of the above symbols can also be used on pre-made stickers to save time, they are saved on the shared drive.

b. Maths Marking Codes

	<u>Mark</u>					Meaning		
Correction and Feedback								
/ or .					Incorrect answer			
\checkmark						Correct answer		
Growth						Teacher will write or give you a sticker for your next step to move your learning on.		
Challenge				ge)		You have an extra challenge to complete and move your learning on.		
						Teacher will stick a tab next to the work that you need to return and respond to		
						Level of Support		
		-	4			Adult Lead Activity		
]	[Independent		
	G					Group Work		
		F	>			Partner Work		
AD					Adult Discussion			
SE					Shared explanation			
	Presentation							
0	1	0	1	2	3	Date written every day on the left hand side. Underlined with a		
						ruler		
4		F		4	1	1 diait in 1 have		
6	+	5	=	1	1	1 digit in 1 box		
6				Respond to marking in the lesson or in the morning the next day. Write the correct answer next to it or underneath your mistake.				

KS1 Marking Code

Mark	Meaning

KS2 Marking Code

Correction and Feedback								
/ or .						Incorrect answer		
\checkmark						Correct answer		
Green Jos						Teacher will write or give you a sticker for your next step to move your learning on.		
Challenge						You have an extra challenge to complete and move your learning on.		
						Teacher will stick a tab next to the work that you need to return and respond to		
						Level of Support		
		-	4			Adult Lead Activity		
]				Independent		
G					Group Work			
Р					Partner Work			
		A	D			Adult Discussion		
SE					Shared explanation			
Presentation								
0	1	0	1	2	3	Date written every day on the left hand side. Underlined with a ruler		
		_						
6	+	5	=	1	1	1 digit in 1 box		
$ \begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$					Respond to marking in the lesson or in the morning the next day. Write the correct answer next to it or underneath your mistake.			

c. EYFS Marking Codes



When we write on your child's work, we show how it was done with these codes -

A=Adult

- I = Independent
- CI = Child initiated.

You will also see the initials of the adult who wrote on this work, or who worked with your child for this, and the date it was done.